
 
 
 

AGENDA  
 
 
Meeting: STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 

Place: Committee Room 5 - County Hall, Trowbridge 

Date: Tuesday 5 April 2011 

Time: 10.30 am 

 

 
Please direct any enquiries on this Agenda to Roger Bishton, of Democratic and 
Members’ Services, County Hall, Bythesea Road, Trowbridge, direct line 01225 713035 
or email roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 
 
Press enquiries to Communications on direct lines (01225) 713114/713115. 
 
This Agenda and all the documents referred to within it are available on the Council’s 
website at www.wiltshire.gov.uk  
 

 
Membership: 
 

Cllr Allison Bucknell 
Cllr Rod Eaton 
Cllr Mike Hewitt 
Cllr David Jenkins 
Cllr Francis Morland 
 

 

Cllr John Noeken 
Cllr Mark Packard 
Cllr Jane Scott OBE 
Cllr John Smale 
 

 

 

 
Substitutes: 
 

Cllr Ernie Clark 
Cllr Peter Colmer 
Cllr Mary Douglas 
Cllr George Jeans 
 

Cllr Howard Marshall 
Cllr Bill Moss 
Cllr Christopher Newbury 
Cllr Jonathon Seed 

 

 
 



< 

PART I  

Items to be considered while the meeting is open to the public 

 

 

1.   Apologies for absence  

 

2.   Minutes of Previous Meeting (Pages 1 - 4) 

 To confirm the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2011. (Copy attached) 

 

3.   Declarations of Interest  

 To receive any declarations of personal or prejudicial interests or dispensations 
granted by the Standards Committee.  

 

4.   Chairman's Announcements  

 

5.   Public Participation  

 The Council welcomes contributions from members of the public. 

 
If you would like to make a statement at this meeting on any item on this 
agenda, please register to do so at least 10 minutes prior to the meeting.  Up to 
3 speakers are permitted to speak for up to 3 minutes each on any agenda item. 
Please contact the officer named above for any further clarification.  

 
Members of the public wishing to ask a question should give written notice 
(including details of any question) to the officer named above by  12.00noon on 
Tuesday 29 March 2010. 
 

 

6.   Amendment to Redundancy Policy - Re-employment by Wiltshire Council 
(Pages 5 - 8) 

 A report by the Service Director HR & OD is attached. 

 

7.   Amendment to Appointments Policy and Procedure - Service Redesign 
(Pages 9 - 20) 

 A report by the Service Director HR & OD is attached. 

 
 
 



8.   Date of Next Meeting  

 To note that the next meeting is scheduled to be held on Wednesday 18 May 
2011, starting at 10.30am. 

 

9.   Urgent Items  

 Any other items of business which, in the opinion of the Chairman, should be 
considered as a matter of urgency. Urgent items of a confidential nature may be 
considered under Part II of this agenda. 
 

 

PART II  

Items during whose consideration it is recommended that the public 
should be excluded because of the likelihood that exempt 

information would be disclosed 
 

 

None 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
 
 
 

 
DRAFT MINUTES OF THE STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE MEETING HELD ON 
9 MARCH 2011 AT COMMITTEE ROOM III - COUNTY HALL, TROWBRIDGE. 
 
Present: 
 
Cllr Allison Bucknell (Chairman), Cllr Rod Eaton, Cllr Mike Hewitt, Cllr David Jenkins, 
Cllr Francis Morland, Cllr Bill Moss (Reserve), Cllr John Noeken, Cllr Mark Packard and 
Cllr Jane Scott OBE 
 
 
 
  

 
16. Apologies for absence 

 
An apology for absence was received from Cllr John Smale, who was 
substituted by Cllr Bill Moss.  
 

17. Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To confirm and sign the minutes of the Committee meeting held on 9 
February 2011 as a correct record. 
 

18. Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest. 
 

19. Chairman's Announcements 
 
There were no Chairman’s announcements. 
 

20. Public Participation and Councillors' Questions 
 
There were no members of the public present or councillors’ questions. 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

21. Trade Union Recognition and Facilities Agreement 
 
Consideration was given to a report by the Service Director HR & OD which 
provided an update on time off for trade union activities being recorded within 
Wiltshire Council. 
 
It was noted that whilst recording levels had improved since the system had 
been introduced in January 2010, there was still a significant shortfall for the 
period 1 July to 31 October 2010, which suggested that the time allowed had 
not been fully recorded.  Total recorded trade union activity for this three month 
period equated to 494 hours per month and there remained a shortfall of 98 
hours per month unaccounted.   
 
The UNISON Branch Secretary confirmed that the recording levels were not 
complete despite reminders being sent to Branch officers and stewards and 
confirmed that the allocation of up to 80 days per month were being fully 
utilised.  Indeed a number of UNISON Branch officials were devoting a fair 
amount of their own time to trade union activities. 
 
After further discussion during which Members recognised the Council’s good 
working relationship with the trade unions and the valuable work undertaken by 
them, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To agree that efforts should be made to improve the time recording 
system so that it could be reviewed more accurately together with the 
revised Trade Union Recognition and Facilities Agreement in July 2011.  
 
 

22. Maternity Support and Paternity Leave Policy & Procedure 
 
On considering a report by the Service Director HR & OD, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the maternity support and paternity leave policy and 
procedure.   
 

23. Equality and Diversity Policy & Procedure 
 
On considering a report by the Service Director HR & OD, 
 
Resolved: 
 
To approve the revised equality and diversity policy and procedure. 
 
 

Page 2



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

24. Default Retirement Age (DRA) 
 
On considering a report by the Service Director, HR & OD, 
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To approve the abolition of a Default Retirement Age, to be 

reviewed in 12 months’ time when further clarification and case law 
might be available.  
 

(2) To request the officers to investigate the feasibility of a fitness to 
work procedure for retirement cases. 

 
25. Quarterly Workforce Reports - December 2010 

 
The Committee received quarterly workforce reports excluding schools for the 
quarter ended 31 December 2010 concerning:- 
 
Headcount and Full Time Equivalent 
Age Profile 
Employee Diversity 
Sickness Absence 
Health and Safety 
Voluntary Staff Turnover 
Disciplinary and Grievance Cases 
 
Members of the Committee questioned the reasoning for setting the benchmark 
at the upper or lower quartiles in some instances.  
 
Resolved: 
 
(1) To note the contents of the report. 
 
(2) To request a short report on the rationale for benchmarking 

arrangements. 
 

26. Date of Next Meeting 
 
Resolved: 
 
To note that the next meeting was scheduled to be held on Wednesday 18 
May 2011, starting at 10.30am. 
 

27. Urgent Items 
 
There were no urgent items. 
 

Page 3



 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
(Duration of meeting:  10.30 am - 11.45 am) 

 
 
 

The Officer who has produced these minutes is Roger Bishton, of Democratic & 
Members’ Services, direct line 01225 713035, e-mail roger.bishton@wiltshire.gov.uk 

 
Press enquiries to Communications, direct line (01225) 713114/713115 

 

Page 4



WILTSHIRE COUNCIL        
 
 
STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
5th April 2011 

 
 

Amendment to redundancy policy – re-employment by Wiltshire Council 
 
Purpose  
 
1. The purpose of this report is to propose an amendment to the redundancy 

policy which was agreed in October 2010.   
 

Background 
 
2. The current redundancy policy includes a clause covering re-employment by 

Wiltshire Council, and states: - 
 
“If you were dismissed on redundancy grounds you may be considered for re-
employment to posts within Wiltshire Council after the minimum statutory 
period of four weeks has elapsed subject to the following conditions: 
 

• The post did not exist or was not foreseeable at the time of the 
dismissal. 

• The vacancy has been advertised in accordance with Wiltshire 
Council policy and procedures. 

• The appointment was made on the basis of the best person for the 
job with regard to the usual selection procedures. 

• The appointment has corporate director approval”. 
 
3. This clause has caused some misunderstanding amongst staff, which has led 

to the belief that employment with the council may be possible 4 weeks after 
their dismissal. This is incorrect for existing posts, but does apply where posts 
are newly created following dismissal. 
 

4. In addition the legal team have advised that by applying this policy to all 
redundant staff this may result in legal challenges on the basis of “restraint of 
trade”. 

 
5. Restraint of trade could apply if the council is unable to justify the restriction it 

places on employment. In the case of compulsory redundancy this restriction 
could be challenged as it is likely to be held to be unreasonable to oblige a 
person to look for work outside their area of residence when, through no fault 
of their own, they have been made redundant. 

 
6. In addition to this a review of the policy has highlighted the need for a time 

limit in the application of the policy, to ensure fairness and equity. 
 

7. The proposed amendment to the policy would provide further clarity on its 
application, will prevent any legal challenge, and ensure fairness in its 

Agenda Item 6

Page 5



application.  
 

Main considerations 
 
8. The clause in the policy currently applies to all redundant staff. This means 

that staff who leave on compulsory redundancy grounds, and are therefore in 
receipt of the statutory redundancy payment, or no payment at all, are 
prevented from being re-employed by the council in any post which existed in 
the council at the time of their dismissal.   

 
9. By applying this clause in the policy to all redundant staff the council could be 

challenged on grounds of “restraint of trade”. This means that the council 
could be precluding certain people from applying for posts which they would 
otherwise be legally entitled to apply. 
 

10. To prevent any legal challenge on the basis of “restraint of trade” it is 
recommended that the clause in the policy should be amended to exclude 
those staff dismissed on compulsory redundancy grounds, but apply where 
staff dismissed have been in receipt of the voluntary (enhanced) redundancy 
payment.  
 

11. This can be justified as the payments are enhanced. The maximum voluntary 
(enhanced) redundancy payment equates to 12 months net pay, and applies 
to all employees with 16 years or more service. The average voluntary 
(enhanced) redundancy payment equates to 7 months net pay. It is therefore 
reasonable to place a restriction on the re-employment of these former 
employees. 
 

12. The clause in the policy currently has no time limit, which essentially means 
staff who are dismissed, and in receipt of a voluntary redundancy payment, 
will be prevented from being employed in a role which existed at the time of 
dismissal forever 
 

13. On reviewing the practice in other large organisations it is common practice to 
apply a 12 month time limit in this type of clause. The legal team has advised 
that 12 months would be a reasonable time limit to place on this clause. As a 
result it is recommended that the policy is amended to include a time limit of 
12 months from the date of dismissal.   
 

14. Taking all of these factors into account it is recommended that the re-
employment by Wiltshire Council clause in the redundancy policy is amended 
to:  

 
“If you were dismissed on redundancy grounds you may be considered for re-
employment to posts within Wiltshire Council after the minimum statutory 
period of four weeks has elapsed subject to the following conditions: 
 

• The post did not exist and was not foreseeable at the time of the dismissal.  

• The vacancy has been advertised in accordance with Wiltshire Council 
policy and procedures.  

Page 6



• The appointment was made on the basis of the best person for the job with 
regard to the usual selection procedures.  

• The appointment has corporate director approval  

 
These conditions will apply for 12 months from the date of your dismissal, 
after which you may be considered for re-employment to any post within 
Wiltshire Council. 
 

If you were dismissed on compulsory redundancy grounds these conditions 
will not apply and you may be considered for re-employment to any post 
within Wiltshire Council after the minimum statutory period of four weeks has 
elapsed”. 

 
15. External advice has also been sought from Veale Wasbrough (solicitors), to 

ensure the policy is consistent with those in other large organisations, 
including other council’s. Their advice confirms that provided by the legal 
team that this would not amount to an unfair restraint of trade as the council is 
not preventing employment in the wider jobs market, and that this approach is 
common practice amongst large employers including the BBC, Aberdeen City 
Council, Fife Council, Essex County Council. 
   

16. At a meeting with the trade unions on 15th March 2011, this proposed 
amendment to the redundancy policy was accepted.  

 
Environmental Impact of the Proposal 
 
17. None. 
 
Risk Assessment 
 
18. None. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
19. None.  
 
Recommendations 
 
20. To approve the amendment to the redundancy policy.  

 
 
Barry Pirie 
Service Director 
HR & OD 

Report Author: Joanne Pitt, Service Head, HR Strategy & Policy, HR & OD 

 

The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of this 
Report: None  

Page 7



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank



WILTSHIRE COUNCIL        
 
 
STAFFING POLICY COMMITTEE 
5th April 2011 

 
 

Amendment to appointments policy and procedure – service redesign 
 
 

Purpose of Report 
 
1. The purpose of this report is to recommend an addition to the appointments 

policy and procedure which was originally agreed in October 2010.   
 

Background 
 
2. The current policy covers service re-design but states:  
 

“During a process of service re-design that involves a re-structure that may 
affect your job, as an employee you will be subject to a period of statutory 
consultation, and this may include you being invited to volunteer for 
redundancy.  Please see the redundancy policy and procedure for further 
information.” 

 
3. There is currently no process to deal with a service re-design where no 

redundancies are required.   
 
Main Considerations for the Council 
 
4. The proposed amendment to the policy (in paragraphs 10 -14 of the policy 

document attached at Appendix 1) would provide an additional informal 
consultation process to enable the council to try and reach a mutual 
agreement with all affected employees, prior to initiating the formal 
redundancy process. 
 

5. A key part of the consultation process within the current redundancy policy 
and procedure includes the need to consider suitable alternative employment.  
The proposed amendment simply moves this step earlier in the process.  

 
6. By enabling consultation with staff prior to issuing “at risk” letters this will 

alleviate stress and anxiety for employees who can be reassured from the 
outset that there is still a job for them. 

 
7. This process will only apply where a service redesign takes place which 

results in new jobs which: 
 

• have differences to the existing jobs which mean that employees do not 
have ownership; but 

 

• are similar enough to be considered suitable alternative employment;  
 

and 

Agenda Item 7

Page 9



 

• where there are the same or greater number of posts as people currently 
employed; 

 
8. The additional step does not prevent an employee from choosing not to 

engage with the mutual consent process and instead going through the formal 
redundancy process whereby they will be put “at risk” and offered the new job 
via the redeployment process as a suitable alternative role. 

 
9. Any employee who fails to engage with the redeployment process, will be 

dismissed on grounds of redundancy but is unlikely to receive a redundancy 
payment as they have chosen not to accept suitable alternative employment.  

 
10. At a meeting with the trade unions on 15th March 2011, this proposed 

amendment to the appointments policy was accepted.  
 
Environmental Impact of the Proposal  

 
11. None. 

 
Equalities Impact of the Proposal 

 
12. None 
 
Risk Assessment 

 
13. None 
 
Options Considered 
 
14. None. 
 
Recommendation 

 
15. To approve the amendment to the appointments policy and procedure. 

 
 

 
Barry Pirie 
Service Director 
HR & OD 
 

Report Author: Paula Marsh, Human Resources Policy & Reward team 

 
Appendices 
 

• Appendix 1 – amended appointments policy and procedure 
 
 
The following unpublished documents have been relied on in the preparation of this 
Report: None  
 

Page 10



Appendix 1 

   

 Wiltshire Council Human Resources 
 

Appointments Policy and Procedure 
 

 

This policy can be made available in other languages and formats such as large print 

and audio on request   

 

What is it? 

 
The appointments policy and procedure provides information for managers on how to 
recruit to vacant posts.   
 
It also provides a process to ensure that employees facing redundancy and service 
redesign are provided with an opportunity to be matched to suitable vacancies before 
these are advertised. 

 

Go directly to the section on: 

Recruitment procedure 
Frontline and specialist positions 
Service re-design – where no redundancies are required 
Service re-design – where redundancies may be required 
Ownership of a post 
Ring-fenced prior consideration 
Appeals against ownership or ring-fence 
Redeployment 
Line manager responsibilities 
Frequently asked questions 
Toolkit 

 

Who does it apply to? 

 
This policy applies to all employees apart from teachers and non teaching staff 
appointed in accordance with the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998 and the 
Education Act 2002. 
 
Where the appointment involves chief/statutory officers and deputy chief officers 
(corporate directors and service directors) the appointments policy and procedure for 
chief and senior officers should be used. 

Page 11



Appendix 1 

   

What are the main points?   

Recruitment procedure 

 
1. Managers will need to gain authorisation for recruitment to all positions by 

completing the approval to recruit form and forwarding it to their corporate 
director who will consider the request. This includes secondments, the use of 
temporary agency and consultancy staff. 

 
2. If the role is non-managerial, corporate directors are able to decide whether you 

are able to recruit. 
 

3. If the role is managerial, corporate directors will consider the request and 
forward on to the chief executive for a decision. 

 
4. If the role is already being performed by an employee on a temporary contract 

of employment (issued by either a Wiltshire District or County Council, or 
Wiltshire Council), this role may now be made permanent (subject to the 
approval above). 

 
5. Temporary employees may be appointed to the permanent role as long as 

appointment to the temporary vacancy was via a competitive process i.e. the 
vacancy was advertised and the employee was taken through a recruitment and 
selection process.  
 

6. Once approval to recruit has been given the advert request form should be 
completed and forwarded to the recruitment team. 

 
7. The recruitment team will check if there are any employees in the redeployment 

pool for whom this post could be considered suitable alternative employment. 
These candidates will need to be interviewed first as they will have prior 
consideration. 

 
8. If recruitment from the redeployment pool is not possible an internal advert will 

be placed, inviting applications from all employees whether on temporary or 
permanent contracts. There are some exceptions to this as detailed below: 

 

Frontline positions: 

 

• Recruitment to a position providing services directly to the public may be 
advertised externally without the need to advertise internally first. Some 
examples include: - 
 
o Social Worker 
o Refuse Loader 
o Leisure Assistant 
o Occupational Therapist 

 

Page 12



Appendix 1 

   

Specialist positions: 

 

• Recruitment to a position of a specialist nature where the skills, 
knowledge, experience and qualifications are unlikely to be available within 
the council, may be advertised externally without the need to advertise 
internally first. 

 
9. If an appointment cannot be made internally, the job will be advertised 

externally.  

Service re-design – where no redundancies are required 

 
10. Where a service redesign takes place which results in new jobs which: 
 

• have differences to the existing jobs which mean that employees do not 
have ownership; but 

 

• are similar enough to be considered suitable alternative employment;  
 

and 
 

• where there are the same or greater number of posts as people currently 
employed; 

 
there will be an initial informal consultation process to enable the council to try 
and reach a mutual agreement with all affected employees, prior to initiating the 
formal redundancy process. See flowchart – redundancy process for service re-
design. 

 
11. This additional step does not prevent any employee who does not agree to 

accept the new job (which may include new terms and conditions) by mutual 
agreement, going through the formal redundancy process whereby they will be 
put “at risk” and offered the new job as a suitable alternative role. 

 
Service re-design – where redundancies may be required 
 
12. Where a service re-design takes place which results in: 
 

• a reduction in the total number of jobs; and/or 
 

• substantial changes being made to jobs so that they no longer constitute 
suitable alternative employment; 

 
the normal redundancy policy and procedure will apply.  This may include you 
being given an opportunity to volunteer for redundancy.   
 

13. Where you volunteer and are accepted for redundancy as a result of service re-
design you will not be subject to the ownership/ring-fenced/redeployment 
processes detailed below. 
 

Page 13



Appendix 1 

   

14. If you do not volunteer for redundancy, you will be considered for a vacancy on 
the following terms: 

Ownership of a post 
 

15. As an employee you will be granted ownership of a post in a new structure 
when it is the same as your current post and the number of post holders 
meeting the criteria below is the same as or less than the number of jobs 
available. Ownership must meet the following criteria: 

 

• If you are a Wiltshire Council employee, the grade for your current post 
and new post must be the same  

OR 

• If you are an employee who is currently employed on a contract which 
TUPE transferred from another organisation (e.g. District Council), the 
Wiltshire Council grade for your current post must be the same as the new 
post. (You will be issued with details of the Wiltshire Council grade as part 
of the ownership assessment)   

 
AND all of the following: 

• your current post and the new post have the same duties and 
responsibilities outlined in the job description or job evaluation 
questionnaire 

 

• your current post and the new post have the same skill, knowledge or 
experience mix  

 

• your current post and the new post have the same working patterns and 
work locations 
 

16. If ownership is established you will be appointed on the following terms: 
 

• if you were previously employed by the County Council or appointed by 
Wiltshire Council since 1 April 2009 you will be appointed on your existing 
grade and pay 

 

• if you are an employee who is currently employed on a contract which 
TUPE transferred from another organisation (e.g. District Council), your 
employment will continue on your existing pay and terms and conditions.  
For further information about employment on TUPE terms and conditions 
you should access the FAQs on pay harmonisation.   

Ring-fenced prior consideration 

 
17. As an employee you will be ring-fenced to apply for a post in a new structure 

when it is the same as your current post but the number of post holders meeting 
the criteria is more than the number of jobs available. 

 
18. In order to be ring-fenced for a post you must meet the criteria set out as above 

for ownership of a post. 
 

Page 14



Appendix 1 

   

19. You will be required to participate in a formal selection interview and if 
successful will be appointed according to the terms above. 

Appeals against ownership or ring-fence 

 
20. You may appeal in writing against an ownership or ring-fence decision if: 
 

• you have been appointed to a post which is not the same as your existing 
post 

• you have not been selected through ownership or ring-fence for a post 
despite it being the same as your existing post  

• you are an employee who is currently employed on a contract which TUPE 
transferred from another organisation (e.g. District Council). This includes 
appeals against the Wiltshire grade for your post that prevents your 
selection through ownership or ring fencing. 
 

21. You should submit your appeal in writing by completing the appointments policy 
appeals form including evidence (such as the JEQ for your existing post) within 
a maximum of 10 working days of the ownership decision to the manager 
responsible for the ownership selection process.  This timescale will apply in a 
majority of cases however in exceptional circumstances the service director (or 
their senior if applicable) responsible for considering the appeal may agree an 
extension.  
  

22. Your written appeal will be considered by a service director (or their senior if 
applicable), HR representative and a union representative.   

 
23. The outcome of your written appeal will be determined within 10 working days 

of its submission and you will promptly be notified of the outcome.   
 
24. If your written appeal includes an appeal against the Wiltshire Council grade for 

your post (for ex-District employees) this will need to be considered before the 
ownership decision can be reviewed.  This may result in a longer period before 
the appeal can be determined and an outcome notified to you.  

 
25. There is no further right of appeal against the decision. 

Redeployment: 

 
26. The redeployment pool is those employees who are facing risk of termination of 

employment, and includes employees who are at risk from compulsory 
redundancy and termination on the grounds of ill health (in line with the absence 
management policy).  

 
27. Employees who are granted voluntary redundancy will not be placed in the 

redeployment pool. 
 
28. If you are not allocated a post through ownership or ring-fencing, prior 

consideration or your job is removed or substantially changed, you will be: 
 

• issued with an At Risk notice 

Page 15



Appendix 1 

   

• the subject of statutory consultation 

• if no suitable alternative employment is found, issued with notice of 
termination of employment following the statutory consultation period. 
 

29. During the period of consultation and notice you will be subject to the 
redeployment process. This will normally be for a maximum of 3 months in order 
to allocate suitable alternative employment.  You will be asked to complete a 
form to supply the broad nature of your work, your current work location, 
possible alternative work location, current working hours and arrangements and 
possible working hours and arrangements.  

 
30. The recruitment team will identify potential suitable alternative employment 

opportunities from the vacancies.   
 
31. Your manager in conjunction with their HR advisor will assess whether a 

vacancy may constitute suitable alternative employment taking into account 
reasonable adjustments.  You will be matched against a post based upon 
factors such as the similarity of: 

 

• job duties and responsibilities 

• knowledge, skill and experience 

• same job grade, one grade above or one grade below (for ex-district 
council employees it is the Wiltshire grade for your post that will be used) 

• working hours and time 

• location  
 
32. You will be selected following a recruitment interview based upon your 

capability to perform the job and you will not be expected to be at peak 
performance on the first day.  As part of this process the recruiting manager will 
complete an interview assessment form .  This contains the interview questions 
and the agreed weighting for each area of the person specification. 

 
33. The recruiting manager will complete a redeployment appointment form for 

each candidate (both successful and unsuccessful). 
 
34. If you are successful, the recruiting manager will complete the redeployment 

starter form and forward to your HR business partner who will arrange for a 
suitable alternative employment letter and contract if required to be sent to you. 

 
35. You will be subject to the statutory right to training and a trial period of 4 weeks 

that can be extended to three months by mutual agreement to enable re-training 
and familiarisation with job requirements. 

 
36. If the trial period is unsuccessful by mutual agreement you will be placed back 

in the redeployment pool for other suitable alternative employment within the 
maximum 3 month period. 

 
37. If you fail to engage with the redeployment process, you are at risk of forfeiting 

any redundancy compensation. 
 

Page 16



Appendix 1 

   

38. If despite these measures, no suitable alternative employment is found you will 
be given notice (according to your individual contract) that your employment will 
cease on the grounds of compulsory redundancy.  In exceptional circumstances 
and by mutual consent, the individual contractual notice period may be 
shortened for which payment in lieu will be made.   

 
39. You have the right of appeal against a decision to terminate your employment. 

Your appeal should be submitted and will be heard in accordance with Wiltshire 
Council’s appeals policy and procedure.  

What are my responsibilities as a line manager? 

 
40. To apply this policy fairly and consistently ensuring that suitable appointments 

are made to vacant posts and posts within a new structure including: 
 

• Considering alternative options to recruiting such as the use of temporary 
contracts, acting up opportunities, redistributing work within the team and 
restructuring. 

 

• Recruiting only to posts that have been approved by a corporate director 
(non-managerial roles) and the chief executive (managerial roles). 

 

• Considering all suitable employees for ownership of a post within the new 
structure applying the criteria stated above and the ownership grid 
provided.   

 

• Considering all suitable employees for ring-fenced prior consideration 
(taking into account reasonable adjustments) for a post within the new 
structure applying the criteria stated above. 

 

• Providing information on available vacancies to employees in the 
redeployment pool that do not have PC access.  

 

• Conducting selection interviews in accordance with the recruitment and 
selection guidelines. 

 

• Retaining detailed notes of all discussions with employees to support any 
decisions made.  Copies should be forwarded to HR to be retained on the 
employee’s personnel record. 

 
 

Frequently asked questions 

 
39. If I am in the redeployment pool and I accept a lower paid post as suitable 

alternative employment will my pay be protected? 
 

If a lower paid post is accepted as suitable alternative employment, protection 
of base pay will apply for 3 years. This applies where the post is one grade 
below (for ex-district council employees it is the Wiltshire grade for your post 
that will be used). Existing base pay will be frozen and will not be subject to 

Page 17



Appendix 1 

   

incremental or national pay awards.  Wiltshire Council terms and conditions will 
apply. 
 

40. If the service is restructured and I apply for or I am redeployed to a new 
position, will I remain on my existing terms and conditions? 

 
You will be appointed on Wiltshire Council terms and conditions 

 
41. What is the redeployment pool? 
 
The redeployment pool are those employees who are facing risk of termination 
of employment.  This enables you to be given prior consideration to be matched 
to suitable alternative employment.  If no suitable alternative employment is 
identified either by you or the council you will be given notice and employment 
will cease on the grounds of compulsory redundancy. 

 
42. If I am in the redeployment pool, how will I be matched against a vacancy? 
 
 All vacancies will be checked against employees in the redeployment pool for 

suitable alternative employment opportunities.  Suitable employment 
opportunities will be based on the following criteria: 
 

• similar job duties and responsibilities 

• similar knowledge, skills and experience 

• same job grade one grade above or one grade below (for ex-district 
council employees it is the Wiltshire grade for your post that will be used) 

• similar working hours and time 

• similar location 
 
 You are also responsible for identifying suitable alternative employment 

opportunities from the vacancies advertised (excluding schools). 
 
 Vacancies can be accessed via http://jobs.wiltshire.gov.uk or by contacting HR. 
 
43. What happens if I do not agree that a job in the redeployment pool is 

suitable alternative employment? 
 
A job will be identified as suitable alternative employment if it meets the criteria 
outlined at 42. Your manager will discuss the opportunity with you and will 
outline the reasons why the job is considered to be suitable alternative 
employment. If you do not agree, you will be asked to set out your reasons for 
refusal and these will be discussed with you on an individual basis, taking into 
account any circumstances which may preclude you from undertaking the new 
role.  
Your manager may decide that your refusal is valid, in which case you may be 
invited to apply for voluntary redundancy. 
If, however, you fail to engage with the redeployment process and reject the 
offer of suitable alternative employment without a valid reason, the council may 
decide to dismiss you on grounds of redundancy with no redundancy payment. 
 

 

Page 18



Appendix 1 

   

44. I am facing redundancy, what support will Wiltshire Council provide?  
 

 You will be placed in the redeployment pool and given prior consideration to be 
matched to suitable alternative employment.  You are also responsible for 
identifying suitable alternative employment opportunities from the vacancies 
advertised. 

 
 Wiltshire Council will also seek to support your needs which may include: 
 

• support in the period leading to the termination through 
counselling/coaching 

• providing practical support in the search for employment including IT 
skills and other relevant training 

• providing financial advice 
 
 For further information please see the employee assistance programme   
 
45. I am facing redundancy, what do I need to do? 
 

Whilst you are in the redeployment pool you will also be responsible for 
identifying suitable alternative employment opportunities from the vacancies 
advertised. 
 
You should also be responsible for your personal development such as 
identifying suitable training that will help in your redeployment. 

 
46. I am one of several employees on Wiltshire Council temporary/fixed-term 

contracts performing the same role. One of the posts is to be made 
permanent. Will I be appointed to that post? 

 
 All temporary/fixed-term employees performing the same role in your team will 

be invited to apply for the permanent vacancy and there will be a competitive 
process to select the successful candidate. If no-one is appointed to the post it 
will be available for employees in the redeployment pool and then advertised in 
the normal way. 

 
47. I am an ex-District employee, how will I know the Wiltshire Council 

evaluated grade for my post? 
 

You should be informed of the Wiltshire Council grade for your post at the 
beginning of the consultation and ownership process.  Please ask your 
manager for this information if it is not made available to you. 

 
48. What if I am unable to submit my appeal against an ownership decision 

within the maximum 10 days time period? 
 

If this timescale is not possible you should inform the manager responsible for 
the ownership selection process as soon as possible, giving details of why you 
are unable to meet this timescale. In exceptional circumstances the service 
director (or their senior if applicable) responsible for considering the appeal may 
agree to extend the timescale for you to submit your appeal. If agreement is 

Page 19



Appendix 1 

   

given you must obtain written confirmation of this. Exceptional circumstances 
may include absence due to sickness or annual leave.  

 
49. I am currently on maternity leave, what are my rights in relation to ring-

fence prior consideration for a post? 
 

If you are currently on maternity leave and have been ring-fenced for a post you 
will be interviewed ahead of other candidates who have been ring-fenced and 
are not on maternity leave.  If you meet the criteria for the post, you will be 
appointed.  This is in line with the Equality Act 2010. 
 

Further advice and information 

 
This policy should be read in conjunction with: 

• Redundancy policy and procedure 

• Recruitment and selection policy  
 

A toolkit providing further information including template letters, forms and manager’s 
guidance is provided on HR Direct. 
 
For further information please speak to your supervisor, manager, service director or 
contact a member of your hr advisory team 
 
 

Policy author HR Policy and Reward Team – (LB) 

Policy implemented 12 October 2010 

Policy last updated 11 February 2011 

 
 

Page 20


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	6 Amendment to Redundancy Policy - Re-employment by Wiltshire Council
	7 Amendment to Appointments Policy and Procedure - Service Redesign
	Item No 07 - Amendment to appointments policy Appendix 1


